REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

FOR

MILWAUKEE STREETCAR PROJECT

OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES
OFFICIAL NOTICE NUMBER 178

Response to Requests for Clarification
January 30, 2012

TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDER: 

Please see the following questions submitted in conjunction with the subject Request for Qualifications and responses:

1. Page 12, General Conditions, Item #1: “If your firm is selected as the owner’s representative for the City Streetcar Project, you are not allowed to submit a proposal for the Final Design RFQ or to bid on any construction portion of the project.” – Can you please clarify how “firm” is to be interpreted for this?  Does this apply only to the Prime Firm or does it also apply to firms that are sub to the Prime?  Could a firm be a sub on one of the projects, if selected as a prime on another? Or can a firm be a sub on both of the projects? 
Answer: Under the direction of the Commissioner of Public Works and City Engineer, the Owner’s Representative team shall be responsible for  managing and overseeing consultants, vendors, and contractors who are providing design services, equipment, construction services, and initial system operations. To avoid any potential conflicts of interest, no member of the selected Owner’s Representative team (prime or sub) shall be allowed to provide services for any future phase of project development. 
2. The RFQ does not mention Public Involvement or Public Relations services.  Are these expected to be provided by the Program Management Consultant (PMC) or are they excluded and provided separately? 
Answer:  Extensive public involvement is not anticipated during the final design and vehicle procurement stages of project development at this time. However, the Owner’s Representative may be required to perform limited public outreach to keep the public informed of project progress. During construction, it is anticipated that DPW will take primary responsibility for public involvement through DPW’s existing Community Liaison program. The Owner’s Representative shall be available to provide assistance and technical support to DPW in any public involvement efforts that may become necessary as the project progresses. 
3. The RFQ mentions following the FTA grant reporting process.  What FTA grants have been secured by the program? 
Answer:  The Milwaukee Streetcar project is funded by federal ICE (Interstate Construction Estimate) funding dedicated to the project. This funding is administered by FTA through grant applications submitted by the grant recipient.  A number of grant applications have been approved for previous phases of project development and funding for all subsequent phases will have to be authorized through additional grant applications submitted by the City DPW. The City DPW will authorize all expenditures of grant funding while the Owner’s Representative shall be responsible to monitor grant expenditures through FTA’s TEAM system as part their overall financial management and monitoring responsibilities. 
4. Is the PMC expected to assist DPW with securing additional local and/or federal funding for the program?  
Answer:  The City DPW will take primary responsibility for pursuing additional federal or local funding.  However, the Owner’s Representative shall provide assistance and technical support to the City DPW in the development of grant proposals as funding opportunities become available.     

5. The program has recently completed an Environmental Assessment.  When is a FONSI expected?
Answer: The FONSI was executed by FTA on January 25, 2012.

6. On Page 6 under the “Development, Monitoring and Reporting of Project Controls” section, the list of scope items is missing numbers 6 and 7.  Are there items missing that should have been included?
Answer:  This is a formatting error. There are no missing tasks. An addendum will be issued to correct the numbering.  
7. On page 10, in the “Submission Requirements” section, for firm credentials and experience to provide “1 page description from the prime consultant and each subconsultant.”  Does this imply 1 page for the prime and then 1 page each of the subsequent subconsultant? 
Answer:  Please provide a one page description for the prime consultant and an additional one page description for each subconsultant. If the team includes a prime consultant and 2 subconsultants, for example, 3 one page descriptions should be provided.
8. On page 29, in Exhibit E, in the “Insurance Requirements” section, “Note:… a Certificate of Insurance shall be provided to the DPW, as evidence thereof naming the CITY as an additional insured” - Is this certificate part of the RFQ submittal requirement, or will be at the time of award of the consultant contract?   If it is required for the RFQ submittal, can the certificate be addressed “to whom it may concern”?
Answer: It is requested that a Certificate of Insurance Coverage meeting the requirements of Exhibit E be included in your submission. 
Alternatively, the respondent may submit a letter from an insurance carrier stating that upon the firm/entity being successful, a Certificate of Insurance shall be issued in conformance with the Insurance and Risk Management provisions of the RFQ.
9. Will DBE involvement follow the NAICS process and criteria used in the WisDOT DBE Program, or can the DBE consultants perform any type of work as long as they are on the approved list?
Answer: The DBE participation rate must be achieved using certified DBE firms in accord with the WISDOT DBE program requirements.
10. Are DBEs/subconsultants on the Owner’s Rep team able to pursue final design or bid on construction?
Answer: Please see response to question #1.

11. On page 5, Item 3 at the top, the task references the draft Project Management Plan.  Does a draft document already exist? If not, who will be responsible for developing it?
Answer:  A preliminary working draft of the Project Management Plan has been developed. However, management responsibilities for major project elements have not been finalized and will be developed based on final contractual responsibilities of the Owner’s Representative and in consultation with the Owner’s Representative. Furthermore, FTA’s Project Management Oversight consultant has pointed out a number of deficiencies in the working draft. The Owner’s Representative shall be responsible to update the document to reflect final management responsibilities and to supplement the document in accord with FTA requirements. Furthermore, the Owner’s Representative shall be responsible to maintain the document throughout project implementation. 
12. How does the Owner’s Rep interface with the St. Paul Bridge project?  Will the Owner’s Representative have similar responsibilities on that project?
Answer: The Owner’s Representative shall have no management or oversight responsibilities of the St. Paul bridge rehabilitation project.  Furthermore, it is envisioned that the streetcar final design consultant and St. Paul bridge rehabilitation consultant shall have the primary responsibility to assure design coordination between the St. Paul bridge design and streetcar guideway design. With respect to the St. Paul bridge project, the Owner’s Representative responsibilities shall be limited to providing general guidance and review of design plans and construction phasing including review of the St. Paul Bridge schedule as it affects the overall streetcar implementation.
13. On page 10, Item 1, there is reference to a one page description of the prime consultant and each subconsultant.  Could DPW explain this further? Is the intent to limit each firm’s description to 1 page? Is Item 1 limited to 1 page?
Answer: Please see response to question #7. 

14. Is there any page limit associated with the Submission Requirements on page 10?
Answer:  Beyond Item 1, there are no page limits associated with the submission requirements. However, in the interest of ease of review, it is requested that respondents be succinct in their response and limit extraneous materials.
15. On page 11, Item 7. Will the scoring of the DBE participation be based solely on the percentage of participation?
Answer:  The DBE criteria will be evaluated based on whether or not the minimum DBE participation rate is achieved using certified DBE firms in accord with the WISDOT DBE program requirements and whether those firms are performing a commercially useful function.
16. How many firms are anticipated to be interviewed?
Answer:  Upon evaluation of submittals, the consultant selection committee will determine if interviews are necessary. Interviews will be performed only if the most qualified team is not readily apparent or if clarification from proposers is required.  As such, we cannot predict whether or not interviews will be necessary or how many proposers will be interviewed at this time.
17. If interviews are conducted, will the selection of the consultant be based solely on the interview without regard to any previous scoring or ranking?
Answer:  If the consultant selection committee determines that interviews are necessary upon evaluation of the submittals, interviews will be used to supplement the initial evaluation.  

18. Will the City consider potential modifications to the General Conditions on Page 13, Item 9 as a part of final contract negotiations with the selected consultant?
Answer: The Indemnification and Defense of Suits provision is not negotiable.
19. Has the City established a budget for the final design and procurement phases of the project?
Answer: A total budget of $64.6M has been established for the project. All project costs including costs for a portion of preliminary engineering, Owner’s Representative services, final design services, vehicles, City utility relocation/adjustments (water main, storm/sanitary sewer, underground communications, traffic signals), MMSD utility relocation, Community Liaison services, maintenance facility, guideway, platform, overhead contact system, etc.  shall not exceed the project budget. The Owner’s Representative shall be responsible for reviewing capital cost estimates and for continuous financial planning /monitoring throughout all phases of project development, including recommending strategies to reduce costs when necessary, to assure costs do not exceed budgetary limits.   

20. Will the Owner’s Rep be responsible for public relations? If so, what level of service and tasks are anticipated?
Answer: Please see response to question #2.
21. Will the Owner’s Rep be responsible for material testing during construction?
Answer: No. It is envisioned that DPW will take action to perform any necessary material testing during construction under standard DPW construction procedures.

22. Will co-location of DPW and the Owner’s Rep staff be part of this project?
Answer: Office space and standard office equipment may be available within the Ziedler Municipal Building for use by the Owner’s Representative for the duration of the Owner’s Representative contract. This can be discussed with the selected respondent during contract negotiations. 
23. How will the Owner’s Rep interface with the City’s IT systems?
Answer: Access to information from the City’s FMIS accounting system will be discussed with the selected respondent upon contract execution. 

24. Does the City have specific software systems they want the Owner’s Rep to use, i.e., Primavera P6?
Answer: Yes. DPW utilizes a unique Oracle database utilizing Primavera P6  project management software. Access to this software and instruction will be provided upon contract execution. Use of compatible software may be considered.    
25. Who will be responsible for maintaining the public web site – DPW, Owner’s Rep, or Designer?
Answer:  Website maintenance is not anticipated during the final design and vehicle procurement stages of project development at this time. During construction, DPW will take primary responsibility for public involvement through DPW’s existing Community Liaison program. Any websites developed during construction will be performed in conjunction with Community Liaison tasks.  However, the Owner’s Representative shall be available to provide minor assistance and technical support to DPW in developing the website.    

26. Will value engineering studies be part of the Owner’s Rep scope of work?
Answer: Formal value engineering is currently being performed under separate contract and the results will be made available to the selected Owner’s Representative upon contract execution. No additional formal value engineering is anticipated during the final design phase at this time. However, the Owner’s Representative shall be responsible to provide value judgement during all phases of project development and make recommendations as part of their overall oversight, guidance and financial management responsibilities. 
27. Has any geotechnical investigation been done for the 30% design? Will it be adequate for final design or will more be needed? If so, will the Owner’s Rep or Designer be responsible for additional geotechnical investigation?
Answer: Geotechnical investigations have not been performed in conjunction with Preliminary Engineering. However, it is anticipated that the responsibility for all geotechnical testing will be the responsibility of the Final Design consultant and not the responsibility of the Owner’s Representative.

28. What are the drivers behind the project schedule?
Answer: An aggressive implementation schedule has been established for the project in an effort to minimize cost escalation impacts.
29. Will the Final Designer be retained to answer RFIs, Submittals, and potential Design Modifications? How will these responsibilities be split between the Owner’s Rep and the Designer?
Answer: If a traditional design-bid-build project delivery method is selected, it is anticipated that the Final Design consultant will be retained to assist the Owner’s Representative during the construction phase. As the “engineer-of-record”, the final design consultant would be  expected to attend pre-bid meetings, attend pre-construction meetings, answer RFI’s, review/approve contractor submittals, review shop drawings, and review design modifications as may be proposed by the contractor.

With the limited assistance of DPW staff and under the direction of the Commissioner of Public Works, the Owner’s Representative shall have primary responsibility for overall construction management of the project. It is anticipated that the Owner’s Representative will provide oversight of all aspects of construction, monitor the progress and performance of contractors, advise the City on construction issues, and  other duties as described in the RFQ.    
Furthermore, the Owner’s Representative shall maintain primary responsibility for overall project management, including the development, monitoring, and reporting of project controls. As such, it is anticipated that specific construction management responsibilities will be better defined based on consultation with Owner’s Representative. Accordingly, your submittal should describe your proposed construction management approach to achieve cost, quality, and schedule objectives. 
30. Page 9, item e) – Who is responsible for as-built drawings?  Owner’s Rep, Designer, or contractor?
Answer: It is anticipated that DPW staff and the Final Design consultant in conjunction with the contractor shall be responsible to prepare as-built drawings.
31. There is a preliminary cost estimate contained in Appendix I of the Environmental Assessment. Can the DPW provide a more detailed breakdown of the phase 1 and 2 construction costs of $30.7 million and $17.4 million respectively?
Answer: All detailed cost estimates developed in conjunction with preliminary engineering will be provided to the selected Owner’s Representative upon project contract execution.
32. Utility relocation issues have been raised over the past several months. Have these issues been resolved? How does DPW see these issues impacting the Owner’s Rep work? Does DPW anticipate any significant assistance by the Owner’s Rep in resolving these issues?
Answer:  At this point, there is a high level of uncertainty with respect to utility impacts. Utility coordination will continue during the final design stage of project development.  During final design, the City will evaluate design refinements, where reasonable, to minimize utility impacts. Utility impacts are anticipated to be known at the 60% design level.  City-owned utility modifications and MMSD-owned utility modifications necessary to accommodate the streetcar project shall be funded by the project while cost responsibility for private utility modifications is a matter of state law. 
The final design consultant will have primary responsibility for utility coordination during the final design stage. The final design consultant will also have primary responsibility for the development of a comprehensive construction phasing plan. The Owner’s Representative responsibilities regarding utilities will be limited to advising the City potential approaches to minimizing utility costs and review of utility modifications proposed by the utilities for reasonableness as well as monitoring of utility costs funded by the project and schedules in conjunction with their overall development, monitoring, and reporting of project controls responsibilities.
33. Proposals are due February 20th, this is Presidents day. Will the City of Milwaukee be open? Will this date change?
Answer: City Hall and the Municipal Building are open for business on President’s Day. As such, no change in the submittal due date of February 20, 2012 is anticipated at this time. 

34. There is no page restriction for the proposal. There is however a page restriction for section 1 of the submission. Is this correct?
Answer: Correct. Please see responses to questions #7, #13, and #14 for additional clarification.
35. Special division task of the scope of services seems to be quite broad and therefore difficult to assign responsible staff at this time. If we are the successful candidate, would we be able add specialty sub consultants (if required) to our team as the specific tasks become apparent? 
Answer: The selected Owner’s Representative may supplement their team with additional subconsultants during future phases of project development upon DPW approval as necessary. However, RFQ submissions will be evaluated based on the project team as identified in the submission and their ability to perform the required services.
36. FTA Circulars – C6800.1 Safety and Security Management, should this be C5800.1?
Answer: Correct. The current FTA Circular C5800.1 “Safety and Security Management Guidance for Major Capital Projects” is the correct reference.
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